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INTRODUCTION

The present School District 161 is the result of the
consolidation of School District 161 and School District 166 in 1928.
The original schools were two one-room buildings; the facilities of
Bloom Township District 3, later School District 166, and Rich
Township District 1, later School District 161. Both of these schools
began in the middle 1800's in a farming area south of Chicago. The
two rural districts consolidated in 1928, joining the east and west
sides of an area that would include the town of Flossmoor and portions
of Chicago Heights, Homewood, Olympia Fields, and Hazel Crest.

In 1988, the superintendent of School District 161, Dr. L. Thomas
Moore, found a treasure in the store room of Parker Junior High.
Gathering dust in some old file drawers were several record books and
teachers' attendance books dating back to 1860. The books detailed
the workings of the first two one-room schools of the Flossmoor area
up until 1928 when they combined to become Consolidated School
District 161.

Until this time, there has been no concise, written history of
the school district. The purpose of this presentation is to
cocrdinate information gleaned from the newly-found archival material,
the district records, with other information in order to trace the
history of School District 161 from the two root school districts to
the beginning of the current School District 161 in 1928.

Most of the material for this presentation came from those
newly-found early school district records. Other information was
found in file material from the Chicago Heights Historical Society at
the Chicago Heights Public Library, the South Holland Geneological and



Historical Society Library, and the publications noted in the
biblfngraphy.

The appendices include maps and platt information from as early
as 1838. There are also sample pages from the early school record
books housed at Parker Junior High. The text is an overview of this
material including the history of the buildings, early teachers in the
district, the school terms, and a typical day for a student in the
school district before 1928.



BUILDINGS

The area incorporating what is now known as School District 161
First was settled in the early 1800's by farmers who moved there fronm
New England, but were originally from Scotland. Many of the other
early settlers had come from Germany searching for good farm land.
Appendix A shows the placement of the original homesteads in the
northern Bloom Township area. These early settlers gave their names
to the roads, creeks and lands of their new-found homes. The Vollmer,
Riegel, Butterfield, and Cohrs families sent their children to the two
original one-room schoolhouses in the area now included in what was to
become Consolidated School District 161. Appendix B is a map of the
south part of Cook County printed in 1876 showing the placement of the
schoolhouse.

One of the earliest settlers on record to affect the history of
the school district was Benjamin Butterfield, who claimed an area in
the northwest corner of Bloom Township in 1834 where the Idlewild
Country Club now stands. In 1850 he set aside a section of his claim
for the use of a schoolhouse which became Bloom District 3. Appendix
C is a copy of Butterfield's original grant to the school district as
found in the school district record books. According to early maps,
the school was placed along Vincennes Road, or what later became Dixie
Highway in the area across from what is now Nelson's Gift Shop. The
school house was originally known as Butterfield School, or Mest
School of the Bloom District. Later it was called Stelter School
because Henry Stelter's farm was just across the road. Appendices D.

E, and [ show other early maps of the Bloom area.
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The western section of the district fell within Rich Township.
The s¢hoolhouse was on what would be Kedzie Avenue near where
Homewood-Flossmoor High School is situated now. Appendix G is a 1935
nap of Rich Township showing the placement of the school. These two
schools served children of the area from the middle 1800's until 1928,
when they combined to form Consolidated School District 161.

No archives tell what the very first schools were like. Most of
the early schools in Illinois were built of logs, however, so these

buildings were probably of similar construction.

"Bl District 3

School records begin in 1860 for the Bloom District 3 school.
According to the records, in 1860 the school board decided to put in
window "lights," or window glass, and build a fence around the school.
The orders were for ..."A good substantial fence, four boards high
with boards twelve feet in lenoth and good oak posts.” The fence was
to be twenty three rods--all for $18.75. Richard Caldwell was hired
to build the fence, furnish all materials and..."be paid $18.75 when
the fence was finished and if there wasn't enough money in the
treasury to wait until the taxes is (sic) gathered next winter for the
remainder.”

Most of the earliest schools lacked window glass, so those early
records of improvements included lots of window “lights," putty, and
window sash. Also in 1861, the school directors ordered ten desks and
seats, presumably to replace the backless boards that were the usual
furnishings of the earliest schools. The directors ordered wood and

some joints of stove pipe for the stove. Also on record was a pail
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and tin dipper, the usual form of water Fountain for the one-roon
schools. Each year a new broom was purchased. The only school
supplies bought were some chalk and maps that the teacher was
reimbursed for buying.

As the years progressed, other purchases included many more
window "lights," lots of stove pipe and again some chalk. In 1865 the
stove started burning coal and the directors bought a lock for the
schoolhouse door. Not until 1870 is there any record of painting the
school. That year they also bought some new seats, built a new
chimney, and bought an insurance policy for the school. After adding
to the fenced school lot, which Hilliam Tatge was to do for $58.00,
getting a new door, fixing the chimney again, and putting in more
windows, the board records of 1875 state that the directors voted
to..."keep our district agoing (sic) as we have been running it."

1880 was a big year for the district. The board of directors
unanimously decided to build a new schoolhouse. The cost for the
frame building was $400.00, quite a lot of money to a small school
district to pay out, especially since the total amount in the school
treasury was $619.00.

The First mention of a clock ($4.25) appeared in the 1880's
records. Besides the usual orders for coal and stove pipe, slate and
a table were purchased. During the 80's, the board started paying to
have the school cleaned. 1[It is unclear who had been doing the
cleaning; presumably, if it was done, it was on a voluntary basis or
was the responsibility of the teacher. In 1889 a map book was
purchased, the only record of school teaching supplies since 1861.

The 1890's detailed lots of painting and repair of the buildinag.
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One notable addition to the purchase list was soap. Finally, in 1899,
the board bought the school a set of encyclopedias for $30.00.

Kedzie Avenue School

Existing board records for the Kedzie Avenue school begin in 1893
when it was decided to build a new schoolhouse and coal shed, at a
cost of $550.00. In order to enlarge the school yard, they bought
twenty-nine square rods of land from Mr. H. Horstmann for $25.00; in
payment they gave him the old schoolhouse and $5.00.

A good idea of the furnishings in the new school comes from the
list of purchases made during that year. A fence was built, lots of
stove pipe was ordered along with a coal pail, two brooms, and a dust
pan. A teacher’'s desk and chair, four school desks, six shelf
holders, and one dozen clothes hooks were added to whatever was left
from the old school. A school bell was bought and a roller for
holding a towel. They paid $2.00 to have the "water closet," or
"privy," painted. There is no record of purchasing any books or
school supplies besides chalk and erasers.

In 1895, the school bought a flag and flag pole, the first
mention of these in all of the early records of either school. That
year also brings a report of buying glass for the windows for the
first time in the Kedzie Avenue School. By 189%, they needed some

more school desks and they whitewashed the school.

5 EEEi[IE[dE[IlE EEEEEI IEIQ
Neither of the schools received a very good report in 1910 when
the county Superintendent inspected them. By this time the Kedzie
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Avenue School was called Rich District 161, and the Stelter School was
called Bloom District 166. The Superintendent reported in full:

District 161 Kedzie Ave. School

“A frame building, seventeen years old. HWindows are not very

3qod. Two of them have shades. There is no ante-room for wraps. No

ictionary, no supplementary reading. A stove, without a jacket. It
takes until eleven o’clock to heat the room in cold weather. Soft
coal is burned. There is but one out-house for both sexes, a
disgrace. Room has not been calcimined for six years. All is dirty
and dingy. Nothing aeod to be said. The yard is about 40 x 100 feet.
No trees, no sidewalKs. There have been eight pupils enrolled, with
an average attendance of fifty per cent. One pupil DHIE present on
the day the school was visited. Assessed valuation, $121,461; rate,
18 cents; amount raised, $200."

District 166 Stelter School

"A poor little frame building of the ordinary poor kind, and of
uncertain age. The location is ?U|te ideal. It is in the timber
above a creek and has some fine forest trees in the yard. There are
old double_desks for the pupils, a table and one chair for the
teacher, There is a little blackboard, and at the windows some shades
inafair state of repair. There is one little ante-room for wraps.
No equipment worth mentioning. The outhouses are under one roof.
Barbed wire is used in the fence. No sidewalks. There were ten
pupils enrolled, but four only present on the daF visited. Directors
never visit. Salary of teacher, $40.00 a month tor seven months.
Graduate of St. James' High School._ Six years' experience, first in
this school. Assessed valuation, $71,743.00. Rate, .53 cents. Amount
raised, $375.00.

Following these reports, both of the schools "calcimined," or

whitewashed their buildings and instituted general repairs.

Between 1915 and 1922, both schools updated their buildings to
keep pace with the times. The District 161 school had an organ which

in 1920 had to be repaired. In the booklet Elossmoor Then...Now, 3

student at the school, Joe Brumley, reported that when the organ was
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played, rats and mice would emerge from it, running all around the
room and scaring the girls.

In 1916, the Stelter school ordered a fountain from Sears
Roebuck, so it no longer needed the pail and dipper for drinking
wvater. In 1917 they bought a globe and maps, and in 1920 they bought
a piano. 1921 listed for the first time desk copies of books. The
Kedzie Avenue school built a new toilet in 1916.

Around 1917 the mothers organized to support the District 166
school. Proceeds from an apron and bakery sale earned $9.75, which
was spent on a Victrola, some records, three chairs, one picture and 3
chart outfit. In 1918 their box social earned $6.86, which was used
to buy a flag, another record, and a clock. After Leavitt Avenue
school was built, the District 161 Mothers' Club donated the
basketball court in back of the building.

In 1922,the Kedzie Avenue School, Dist.161, voted to build a new
school on Leavitt Avenue just north of [llinois Street (Flossmoor Rd).
The brick school had two rooms and a basement, so two teachers were
needed. The oriainal Leavitt Avenue School cost $4,964.00 and
included plumbinag for a washroom, a furnace for heating, and
electricity. For the first time a janitor was hired for upkeep at
$60.00 per month. The building was also used by a Sunday School for
the children of the growing community of Flossmoor.

In 1923 the Stelter School followed suit and voted to build 3 new
school, also of brick. This building included running water and a
furnace, but the directors rejected adding electricity at that time
because it was too expensive. A year later they added it. For the
dedication of the new school, the board had the Bloom High School band
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play and donated $25.00 to them. They also hired a janitor, Herbert
Stelter, and paid himn $15.00 per month. The next year they hired Emil
Stelter as janitor and paid him $25.00 per month.

Both of these schools had brand new Furniture ordered from Sears
Roebuck, sets of books, and even a pencil sharpener and curtains. By
1927 the Stelter Schnol had installed indoor plumbing, bought library
books; and a fire extinguisher.

1926 found both schools facing overcrowded conditions. The
Stelter School board considered building 3gain, but decided the best
answer was to consolidate with District 161. Leavitt Avenue School
was also facing the same question of expansion, but they had the
two-room school and the added advantage of the Community House in
Flossmoor Park. In 1928 the residents of the two districts voted to

consol idate, and the two schools merged into what is now Flossmoor

School District 161.



TEACHERS

The teachers for the earliest one-room rural schools were often
men who took up school teaching just to be working at something,
After the Civil Har, more professional teachers were attracted to the
field of education. Homen gradually eﬁlered the profession and, by
the late 1800’'s, replaced many of the schoolmasters. The pay was vervy
low, but it was one of the few ways unmarried women could support
themselves. Until well into the 1900’s, teachers often had little
more schooling than their own more advanced students. Turn-over of
teachers was often quite high because most of them quit as soon as
they married. If the teacher was not already a member of the
community, she often had to "board around," or stay in the homes of

the residents.

Eicst Teachers

The earliest record of a teacher in the 161 area is found in the
board minutes of the Bloom District 3 in what was called the
Butterfield School, later Stelter School, Bloom District 166. In
1860, Ann Lucas was hired to teach from April 2 until July 20. She
was paid $60 for that time. That fall the district hired Robert Doyle
to teach from October 22, 1860, to March 30, 1861, paying him $30 per
month. He also taught a summer session from April 22 to August 2,
1861, for $16 per month. Possibly the summer session was held for
only half a day, or maybe few children attended; the records do not

eaxplain the discrepancy in pay.
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The school board record book used in 1860 included a hand-written
page of rules to be followed by the teachers and students of the
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The earliest record of a teacher in Rich District 1, the Kedzie
Avenue School, later District 161, appears in the school records for
1868. HWillard A. Chapnan was hired to teach from Decenmber 16, 1868
for sixteen weeks. For this he was paid $40 per month. The next
tecacher was Magret Young in 1870. There is 3 gap of time before the
board records the next teacher in 1876. It is unclear whether the
school was suspended during those years or the board records are
merely incomplete. However, in 1876, W.G. Hill received $40 per month
to teach from October 23 for a period of five months. Appendix H
shows a teacher’'s contract, one of several which were actually
included in the board record book for the Rich District.

The board minutes of Rich District 1 do not give specific rules
for the teacher, but the printers of the board record book used in
1868 lists a series of general rules to be followed. See Appendix 1
for a copy of these rules.

In the early one-room schools of the 161 and 166 districts, the
tenure of the teachers seldom lasted for more than two years.
Occasionally, the jobs would pass from one family member to another.
In 1870 Janet Fleming taught in the Stelter School to be replaced the
next year by Sarah Fleming. In the middle of the year 1882-1883,
Lotte Sloan took over from Mary Sloan after only a month and a half.
In one case Joseph Scott Lintnman taught for half the year, and his
wife, Jennie Lintnman, finished the term. In another situation it
appeared that one of the men of the area, fFred Seikmann, was required

to start the school year for one month before the regqular teacher was

- -
=l a
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p | R ibiliti N
Fhe pay for the 1860's was $35 per month in the Bloom District

school, while the teachers in the Rich District school earned $40 per
month. By the 1890's both districts were paying $40 per month for
five to seven months of school, usually beginning in October and
concluding at the end of March. The teachers’ salaries were held at
$40 per month until 1911 when both school districts paid $50. By
1915, the going rate was $35, and in 1920 the pay was $99, raised to
$100 after the First two months of work. 1927 found the teacher
earning the grand sum of $140 per month. This also may have aided
some in the stability of the teacher, because Myrtle Savage remained
in the position for five years--a record tenure in the history of the
school district up to then.

The general rights and responsibilities of teachers were set down
by I1linois law, as found in one of the teacher attendance books in
use during 1895. The major legal duty to the state and school board
was to keep an accurate record of attendance, and at the end of each
month the teacher was required to hand in an official form to her
school directors. The laws required that the school directors pay
their teachers monthly. They also listed days on which the teacher
could not be required to teach. These days included Saturdays,
Sundays, and the legal holidays of New Year's, Fourth of July,
Christmas, and Thanksgivina. Furthermore, the board could not require
the teacher to make up days that were lost to these legal holidays.

The 1895 attendance book also included suggestions for school
management and a brief list of the theories and principles of

teaching.
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The curriculum of the schools was very basic. Presumably from a
lack of standard preparation requirements to become a teacher, the
state record books in 1882 included a list of subjects to be taught
and even suggestions for teaching methods. Appendices J, Ky L, and M
are copies of these pages.

The school day for the teacher was packed full. A sample
schedule printed in the state record book used in 1895 shows no free
time available to her, especially considering that she was expected to
be on duty during the noon hour recess to supervise the games of the
children.
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SAMPLE PROGRAMME OF RECITATION AND STUDY.
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By 1922 with the opening of Leavitt Avenue School, District 161
had two teachers. Younger students were in one room and older ones in
another. The classes grew to the point where a third teacher had to
be hired to deal with the overflow and the teachers were directed to
assign their own schedules to deal with the classes. In 1927, a class
of older children had to be housed in the Flossmoor Community House,
necessitating a telephone for communication between the buildings.
Mrs. Echols, the teacher of the older children, was also the principal
and so had the responsibility of overseeing the other two teachers.
She was directed by the board to visit the other two classrooms at
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least twice a week, preferably during first or last period on Mondays
or Frfdays. There is no record of who was left in charge of her
pupils; presumably, they were left unsupervised.

This period of growing attendance also hit the Stelter School.
The teacher, Myrtle Savage, was sti]l_handling all grades in the one
roon. At one point in the period between 1926 and 1928, she was
responsible for up to 48 pupils from ages six to sixteen. In 1928,
the two districts combined to better serve the growing community.
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THE SCHOOL TERM

In the late 1800's, the children of farmers in the area attended
school on a decidedly irregular basis. Their attendance depended on
the availability of a teacher, their parents’ interest in education,
the weather, and the need for their services at home. The records of
attendance for the Kedzie Avenue School have been lost, but a complete
set of attendance books exists for the Bloom District 3 school
starting from 1882, continuing through the years as it became School
District 166, and up to 1928 when it consolidated with District 161.
There are, however, partial records starting as early as 1860.
Appendix N is a page from the attendance register for the school term
1883-1884.

School terms were initially decided by area residents. In the
1860’s schools commonly operated a summer session. The earliest
record of the district is an 1860 summer session that ran from April
to the end of July. 1In the early 1860's the Butterfield School (Bloon
District 3) had between fifteen and twenty students on its yearly
rosters.

Occasionally, the directors for county superintendent would
comment on how the school term had gone. In August 1861, the
following statement is recorded for Bloom District 3 School.

"This school is one of the best in the township. It has pupils
very well advanced in most of the common English branches. The class
in Grammar is tolerably well advanced for 3 common school. The
Przctical Arithmetic class is well advanced. | can say the same of

the Geography Classes. The Spelling and Reading classes also pass a
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very good examination in short every class in the school does well,
but I would advise Directors and Teachers to pay a little more
attention to the teaching of Penmanship, as there is some deficiency
in this department of the School. Directors should pay strict
attention to the qualifications of Teachers and visit and examine the
school at least once a month."

In 1862 the report was much shorter:

"We had a good school this turme (sic)."”

It appears the first one was written by the county superintendent
or other official, while the 1862 sentence appears to have been
written by one of the local school directors.

otudent Attendance

There was no mandated age for beginning or leaving schooling.
Most students were between six and thirteen., Occasionally, a student
might be as old as fifteen or sixteen, but these were usually girls;
by that age the boys were involved in the farm work with their Fathers
or they fFound books and sitting too confining. In several of the
early attendance books, children of five and even four are marked as
being in attendance. In fact, in 1894 Walter Gottschalk, age three,
attended school for ten days in October. He continued his schooling
in 1897 at age six, so it is possible that he first came with his
older sister only because no one was at home to watch hin.

While a school term might run for five months in the 1800's, it
was common for many students to begin the term late and leave early.
!n Cctober of 1882, twelve students began the first week of the term,
most of them aged six to nine. Other students trickled in through
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late November, with one boy, Louis Riegel, age fourteen, beginning on
January 9 and ending on March 1. He received a total of twenty-two
days schooling that year. That same year a thirteen-year-old boy,
Charles Doepke, attended only twenty-five days.

The names of the students in those days are familiar ones to
residents of the area today. Most notable are the long line of
Vollmer children (there were eleven of them) and the Riegel children.
These families have given their names to two roads cutting throuah the
area. The Stelter children faithfully attended as well, which is not
surprising since they lived directly across the road from the school.
Also those first years there were the Seikmanns, the Mertens, the
Kohlers, the Anders, and the Tangermanns.

The public schools did have some competition from parochial
schools of the area. It was not uncommon for students to attend the
farther parochial schools when the weather was good and the nearer
public schools in bad weather. In fact, the early Kedzie Avenue
Schocl had a problem with attendance since many students attended the
German Lutheran School half the day and public school the other half.

Overview of Stelter School Terms
Since the schools then were in session for only about five
months, their holidays were quite short. [In 1882 the Stelter School
closed for one day at Thanksgiving, one day at Christmas, and one day
at New Year's. However, the day after Christmas only five students
attended. 1In early February there was a two-week break with school
resuming on February 12 and continuing until March 23, 1883.
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Charlotte Sloan took over for Mary Sloan as the teacher, and in the
transition many of the students’ names were misspelled. "Lotte"
didn't seem to be as careful as Mary.

The school year 1884-1885 was a hard one. Even though school
started September 29, no school was held one week in October,
Christmas vacation that year was an entire week, and a week was lost
in February "on account of the storm." School that year lasted until
April 10, but few children attended after the end of March. The farm
work had evidently begun.

In 1885 the Christmas vacation lasted until January 16 because of
sickness. The students had a new holiday that year--George
Hashington's Birthday! Even though the school term continued until
May 7, few pupils came to school after April 23, Good Friday.

This attendance pattern held up through the end of the 1800's.
The early 1900's saw a decrease in enrollment of the school with many
of the first families’ children reaching ages of thirteen and
fourteen, where they no longer attended. Also, sickness took 3 toll
on the school attendance; some children stayed out of school because
of sickness of brothers or sisters; presumably the family was under
quarantine. In 1906, one student, ten year old Eddie Vollmer missed
six weeks of school because of sickness. MWhile the school registers
of the 1880's listed sometimes as many as twenty-five pupils, the
daily roster of 1905-1913 rarely listed ten students. The Vollmers
and the Riegels, families with many children, had disappeared almost
entirely from the rolls.

The weather still caused problems in 1912 when school was called
of f January 5 and 8 because the weather was ten and fifteen degrees
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below zero. Since there was no such thing as a substitute teacher
then, a teacher's illness would also cause school to be dismissed.
Also in 1912 for the first time in district records, the school had a
holiday for Lincoln’'s birthday. In 1913, another new holiday,
Columbus Day, was observed in October.

1914 was an interesting year in that of eleven students, seven of
them had left by the end of October for "the city." Only four
students remained to finish the year. Again in 1915, fifteen students
started the year, but the same seven left for "the city," again by the
end of October.

In 1915, the school closed for two weeks "on account of the
measles." In 1918 three weeks were lost "on account of the weather.”
School continued that year until June 11, and the students got another
holiday, Decoration Day.

In the fall of 1918 the school was closed for two weeks but no
reason was given in the records. It was closed again from January 18
through February 7, again with no reason given. A world-wide flu
epidemic occurred during that time period. In the book Indian Trails
to Tollways, the authors report that the October 24, 1918 edition of
the Chicaao Heights Stap stated that in this area, "churches, schools,
and theatres were closed in an attempt to combat the spread of the
Flu."

By 1921 the enrollment was back up to twenty-one students, and
there were additional days off for such things as the fair, Institute
Day, Visiting Day, Armistice Day, and School Festival Day. The
school year by this time ran from September until the middle of June,
with most of the students remaining for the entire term.
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By 1923 the enrollment had run to thirty-five students. In 1925
evidently still no substitutes were available; Stelter School was
closed for an extra week at Christmas because of teacher illness.

Also in that year, the students had the last Friday in May off because
the school was giving a progran over HLS radio in Chicago.
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TYPICAL SCHOOL DAY

School Materials

The earliest one-roon schools had few books for use by students.
Often the only books available were the ones the teacher provided fron
his or her own personal library. Many times students brought whatever
books they could find at home to help them in their reading classes.

Writing materials were also scarce. The students had double-
sided slates for practice in writing and fFiguring. I[f there were
notebooks, they were made at home from heavy, brown wrapping paper.
The pens were made from goose quills, or feathers, and the ink was
made from the bark of maple trees. Often the blackboard was actually
Just that: some boards nailed together and painted black. The
erasers were blocks of wood covered with sheeps’ wecol.

Gradually, after the Civil War, or "The Great Rebellion" as it
was still called then, schools became better equipped with some
etandard textbooks, especially for reading and arithmetic. Textbooks
used in District 166 were first listed in the teacher’'s register book
for 1899-18%90. By that time the district was using textbooks for
arithmetic, reading, history, grammar, and geography. The Eive Cent
Classics was a set of biographies of Lincoln, Washington, Whittier,
Longfellow, and Louisa May Alcott.

Visit
Occasionally, there would be visitors to the school. School
directors were expected to visit once a month, but this was rarely the

case with the two local one-room schools; at least they

.,23.-



were not recorded as being present very often in the teachers' books.
From 1860 through 1862 the Bloom director, C. Morris, visited twice
each year, and Mr. Caldwell came twice in 1861. The records show Dr.
Doepp visiting once in the term 1869-1870. The records for 1899 show
only two visitors, both from Chicago, but by 1909, seven visitors were
listed. In 1919 a Mr. C.C. Halther from Harvey visited four times.

He also returned in 1924, Since these are the only visitors recorded
over the space of about sixty years, it can be assumed that accurate

records were not Kept, or they have been lost.

Life at School

There is little written record of a student’s view of the life in
either the Kedzie Avenue School or the Stelter School. However, a
typical picture can be pieced together from first-hand reminiscences
of other people of the time. In order to get to school, the children
usually had to walk whether the weather was warm or cold. There is
one report that children going to Kedzie Avenue School sometimes had
to walk in the ditches because the cows were on the road. They
carried their books and slates along with a lunch pail. Upon arriving
at school, the teacher or older boys would build a fire in the stove
to heat up the roon. In very cold weather it took quite a while to
warm the entire room, and often the students in farther desks never
did get much heat. One woman recalled that her mother sent along an
old rug to put on the floor under her feet to help keep her warm. If
soneone’'s mother had sent cocoa along, the bottle was set on the stove

during the morning to warm so it would be ready at lunch time.
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Most schools had a well and pump outside for drinking water, but
in some cases the water had to be carried in a bucket from a neighbor,
as was the case with the early Kedzie Avenue School. Everyone used
the same dipper. The bathroom facilities consisted of a privy, or
outhouse. Sometimes there was one for girls and one for boys, but
often one was shared. In the 1920's when the new schools were built
in the district, it was a luxury to have indoor toilets.

The school day began at 9:00 with some singing, Bible reading, or
the Lord’'s Prayer. Then the class work would begin. The teacher
would have students come forward to recite their lessons, read, or do
arithmetic problems in turn, depending upon their ages and abilities.
While one group was reciting, the others would work at their seats
with a book or slate. If the weather was nice, the children and the
teacher would go out to play during a fifteen minute recess in the
morning.

The lunch hour was usually from 12:00 until 1:00, again with the
students and teacher joining together in games. This was probably not
as much a hardshipo for the teacher as it would appear, since most of
them were only a few years older than their students. The afternoon
would continue in the same way with possibly the addition of drawing
classes or music if the teacher was capable of that instruction. The
afternoon also included a fifteen minute recess. School was dismissed
at 4:00.

Just as today, the early students played many games during their
recess and noon hour. There were no formal gym classes, so games
provided the exercise and, in good weather, fresh air for everyone.

Basebal]l was a favorite. Teams would be chosen with children of all
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ages involved. Other popular games included red light-green light,
red rover, mumbly peg, King on the hill, pom-pom pullaway, ante over,
fox and geese, blind man's bluff, football, marbles, jacks, and many
forns of taog.

The teacher and the older students took turns carrying in coal or
wood for the stove, cleaning up the school grounds, removing snow, and
taking care of the playground equipment. The younger students would
clean the erasers. Children conpeted for some of the more prestigious
Jobs, such as greeting visitors or sitting at the teacher’s desk when

the teacher had to leave the roon.

Discipli

0f course things didn't always go well in the school room. In
some places teachers who could not maintain order were actually driven
from the schoolroom by bullies. Compared to today, the discipline
could be quite harsh. Flogoing or switching of unruly students was
commenplace, especially when larger boys were involved. The
instruments of discipline might include a birch rod, switch from 2
sapling, or a flat ruler smacked across the hands or a more
substantial part of the anatomy. The girls as well as the boys often
felt the sting of the switch.

The records of the Stelter School include grades in "deportment"
or behavior. In 1895 Ida Stoddard's class of twenty students all
received either an 85 or 90 in deportment. In 1896 everyone got 90 or
95 except for one seven year old named Walter; he got an 85. In 1897
the teacher went to the form of Good or Excellent, with one
eleven-year-old boy getting a G-. One sixteen-year-old boy got an F
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in deportment in 1898. By 13#?, Walter’'s behavior had also
deteriorated to an F.

In 1928 Mrs. Echols reported to the board that one boy had been
teasing other children to the extent of "being very troublesome."
Evidently, he had other bad habits too, because the board recommended
that he be "made to replace the shrubbery that he had destroyed.”
This is the only early school record of any student's behavior coming
to the attention of the school board.

Conclusion

Since the school house was usually the only meeting place in the
area, it was the center for most community get-togethers. Many of
these directly involved the school students in such things as spelling
bees, Halloween parties, and Christmas programs. Sometimes there
would be box socials, debates, picnics, and if there was no church
building, Sunday church services. The school was often the local
polling place as well.

The area residents did their best to provide for the education of
the children in the district. Often with little money and workKing
3gainst weather and the press of earning their own livinas, they
presented the students with a precious gift--the chance to learn.
These hardy settlers set the precedent for a strong educational system

that continues with Flossmoor School District 161.
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A MAP OF OLD BLOOM IN 1834 1

e 'U-d.i-....r
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The accompanying map is a copy of that made by the original land surveyor,
in 1834. It shows only two roads, or rather one road and a erail. The Vin-
cennes Road is now Chicago Road or, for a part of the way through the Town-
ship, the Dixie Highway; and the Sauk Trail is now the Lincoln Highway from
the Adam Brown comner to the east boundary of the Township. The streams
and the limits of the timber in their neighborhood are shown. On this map
as a base is locared all of the fifteen pre-emption claims as here listed. It is in-
teresting to see how the earliest sertlers picked out locarions along the two
roads, along the streams, and near the timber which supplied both building
material and firewood, as well as protection from storms.
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ules and Begulations,

For Lhe Covermment of the Schools in this Dislricl.
'_.._-__._.._.

Erix 1. Mo person shall be employed o teach o Common Bebool in this Distriet unless be shall have »
ralid Cortifeate of qualification, and not wntil such Osrtifeats of qualiication shall be exhibited 1o the Sehosl
Doard sa meguired by law.

Rowx 2. All Teachers are required to be in their respective Bebool-rooms st least ffieen minutes before
the tims fxed for the morning semion fo sommence, and at loast fire minates befors the time for the afiermoon
woEmion O SOmMW-EDCE.

RBrix 8. Teachers aball, aa far as practicable, maintain a personal sapervision ever iheir pupils during
the time of recsss, preveating any [l-doing, and connseling them o sngape in such sports s may be bealthful
end isnceent.

Boix 4. Teachers sball notify the Clerk of the District Board whenever it is necessary to procure articles
for sweeping and slaaning the Bohool-bouse, or to smploy persons to make the mecesmary fires, and insare the
cleanliness of the building. )

Rore 5. In shall be the duty of ench Teacher to see that the windows of his Behool-room are carefully
closed, that the fire, if sny, is in s perfectly safe condition, and that the cutside door of bis room is locked at the
elose of ench day, unlems the Behool-bouse is under the eare of & Junitor.

Boux 8. Teschers aball koop o rogister of the Behool, which shall exhibit the namber of the Sehool, the
Town and County in which the Bebool is kept ; the day of the week, month and year ; the name, age, strendance,
and pusctuality of sach Beholar, and shall make such & report of the Behool st the elose of sach term wa the
law requires.

Erix 7. It shall be the doty of the Teachers, at the close of each school.week, to motify, in writing, the
parents or guardisns of the delinguency of such of their pupils as may be tardy twice, or absent from Behool
sne or more hall days, or loces obe or more recitations during any soe weak of the school term.

Roiz B, [i shall be the duty of Teachers to send Bpecisl Reports Lo parenis or guardians, notifying them
of the abaence or tardiness of their popils st Bebool, the mumber of reciiations losiin consequence of such
sbeence or tardiness, endeavoring thareby Lo secure regular and pusctus! sttsndasce st Behool.

Boiz 0. Teachers sball not appropriste to themselves, in the School, or within the boars thereto belong-
ing, any portion of time for their owa reading, writing, or business ; nor shall they engage in any other business,
which, in the judgment of the Bebool Board, will interfers with or be inconsistent with, the performance of their
duties.

Borx 10. No Tescher aball absent himself from Behool during Behool hoars, exeept on sccount of sick-
wons, of other moavoidable necessity.

BRoiz11. Ko Teacher ahall allow any sdvartisement to be distributed or posted in the School House or
on ita premises; mor shall any person be permitted to enter the Bchool for the purpose of exhibiting any Book
or Apparatus, or other article, for sale to the Teachers or Pupils.

Eois 12, The wsual order of exercises in Behool sball pot be varied by the Tenchers oo account of the
presence of visitors in the Bebool.

Bowx 18 No papil ahall be received or continoed in the Common Sehool, known to be affected with o
eontagions of infections dissase, or 1o come from » family where such discasc prevails.

Rrix 14. Amy pupil eoming to School with offensive unclesnliness of person er elothen shall be pent
heme 1o be properly prepared for Behool.

Rous 15, The Tencher, immedintely afier the cloae of bis term of Behnol, ahall deliver to the Clerk of
the Boarl his Daily Register, Clase Rook. snd Sehne! Laiger. wluriduhﬂh&iuhhn;hmnhgm_

Adopled by the District Board, al a regular mecling of said Board, beld
JAis . " FF T Sy | A
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